o U, WN PR

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31
32
33
34
35
36
37
38
39
40
41
42
43
44
45

Town of Charlotte
DEVELOPMENT REVIEW BOARD MEETING
Meeting Conducted at Town Hall and via Teleconference
October 8, 2025

DRAFT — subject to approval by the Development Review Board

Development Review Board: Charles Russell (Chair), Gerald Bouchard (Vice Chair), Alexa Lewis,
Doug Paton, Brandon Tieso.

Staff: Rebecca Kaplan, Interim Zoning Administrator.

OTHERS: Frank Tenney.

Posted Agenda:
7:00 PM Call to Order; changes to agenda (if any)
7:02 PM Public Comment (not pertaining to pending applications)

7:05 PM Review & Approve Meeting Minutes: draftt DRB Minutes, September 24, 2025
7:10 PM Markup & Approve Draft Decisions: DRB 25-135- SDA O’Donnell Donovan
7:30 PM Review of DRB Rules of Procedure (continued)

8:30 PM DRB suggested edits to the Land Use Regulations

9:00 PM Adjourn

Call to Order/ changes to agenda:
Chair, Charles Russell, called the meeting to order at 7:01pm. No changes to the agenda.

Public Comment:
None.

Review & Approve Meeting Minutes: draft DRB Minutes, September 24, 2025:
MOTION by Alexa Lewis; seconded by Brandon Tieso, to approve the DRB meeting
minutes for September 24, 2025, as amended. VOTE: 5 ayes, motion carried.

Markup & Approve Draft Decisions: DRB 25-135- SDA O’Donnell Donovan:

Lewis confirmed that the draft decision is to approve an enlarged building envelope; the Zoning
Administrator would approve the Accessory Dwelling Unit (ADU). Lewis questioned the use of the
phrase reasonably sized building envelope. Consensus to remove the reference to reasonable.

Doug Paton noticed an inconsistency in acreage being added to the existing building envelope; in
one instance acreage read 0.14 and in another 0.15. In response, Russell suggested editing out an
unnecessary finding to eliminate the inconsistency.

Gerald Bouchard commented on the reference to the access from Lake Road. Russell proposed
wording so that the finding remains focused on the increase to the building envelope; the additional
section of the building envelope will allow the owner to use the same access. To Russell’s comment on
focus, Lewis pointed out that the existing building envelope is being enlarged to accommodate an ADU.

Paton suggested the use of proposed development versus future development.

Bouchard asked if a note on the final plat referencing the fire pond would suffice instead of
depicting. Consensus for the condition to depict the fire pond on the final plat to remain in the decision.

Paton pointed out that the site visit that occurred was not captured in the decision.



46
47
48
49
50
51
52
53
54
55
56
57
58
59
60
61
62
63
64
65
66
67
68
69
70
71
72
73
74
75
76
77
78
79
80
81
82
83
84
85
86
87
88
89
90
91
92
93

page 2 Development Review Board 10/08/2025

Lewis asked if the waivers that were granted to the applicant should be documented given sketch
plan review was waived. Through application review, it was determined that the applicant requested
waivers through an attached letter, and this would be documented in the decision.

Lewis then asked if there should be reference to the 1997 subdivision and Planned Rural
Development (PRD). Lewis also wondered if an open space agreement was part of the PRD. In
response, Russell proposed adding a condition to require a note on the updated plat to ensure that all
conditions of the 1997 decision remain in effect.

Paton suggested documenting in the decision that the applicant included their wastewater plan in
their application.

Lewis proposed an additional condition that the expanded building envelope be shown on the
final plat.

MOTION by Brandon Tieso; seconded by Doug Paton, to approve the draft decision for
DRB-25-135 SDA O’Donnell Donovan, as amended. VOTE: 5 ayes, motion carried.

DRB suggested edits to the Land Use Regulations:

Russell reviewed the list that he had compiled of his suggested edits to the Land Use Regulations
(LURs). The first being to add accessory structure setback dimensions in all districts where accessory
structures are permitted. This led to discussion about the possibility of adding a definition for exempt
accessory structure. Lewis noted that the former Zoning Administrator had suggested clarification on
accessory structures that predate zoning. Specifically, their impact on what is allowable, and lot
coverage. Russell read from LURs pertaining to lot coverage. Subsequent discussion pertaining to
whether accessory structures and structures predating zoning should be counted towards lot coverage.
Russell summarized the discussion by saying that the Planning Commission might want to consider lot
coverage.

Russell moved to his second proposed edit which pertains to the 7% lot coverage in the
Shoreland District. Russell noted that the Planning Commission is aware of the evolution that led to the
7% and is considering.

Russell’s next item pertained to very steep slopes. Russell questioned if it would be beneficial to
add a minimum area of land before very steep slopes are triggered. Lewis responded that state statute
regulates very steep slopes.

Russell had flagged reference to conformance with the Town Plan. Russell pointed out that what
should be considered is if the implementation tool (LURs) conforms to the Town Plan. To this, Brandon
Tieso asked if the Development Review Board (DRB) should be proposing edits to LURs as a
deliberative body. Russell responded that the request to do so came from the Town Planner. Tieso said
that asking for clarification differs from requesting changes to policy. Frank Tenney suggested that the
Town Plan should be rewritten to not include policies. Russell said the Town Planner agrees with
Tenney’s comment and is working towards that.

In the same section as the reference to conformance with the Town Plan, Lewis noticed that it
outlines that the DRB can be more restrictive with setbacks, buffers, lot coverage, but not less
restrictive. However, the DRB is less restrictive at times. Russell agreed and added Lewis’ point to the
list.

Russell moved to his next item which noted redundancy in the outlining of appeals.

Russell’s next proposed edit pertained to the use of Party Status which should be replaced with
Interested Persons.

The discussion then moved to accepted agricultural practices and required agricultural
practices. Consensus that the two are separate and should both be defined. This was added to the list.

Russell moved to his next proposed edit regarding 50% open space required with a PRD. Russell
suggested that this be moved to a more prominent place within the LURs.



94
95
96
97
98
99
100
101
102
103
104
105
106

page 3 Development Review Board 10/08/2025

The final proposed edit discussed was standards of hours for restaurants. Paton asked if the
standard should be for any place of business. Bouchard felt that this is something that should be
considered on a case-by-case basis, as it is site specific.

Review of DRB Rules of Procedure (continued):
Agenda item tabled due to time constraints.

Adjourn:
MOTION by Brandon Tieso; seconded by Alexa Lewis, to adjourn the meeting. VOTE: 5
ayes, motion carried. The meeting was adjourned at 9:04pm.

Minutes respectfully submitted:
Nicole Burnell, Recording Secretary




